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Location

The South Washington Street Planning Opportunity
Area (POA) is located along the Ci t gobtkern
border and is the second priority area of eight to be
studied in the City of Falls Church as part of the
Comprehensive Plan update process. It is part of a
major commercial corridor that stretches along
Route 29 through the heart of the city, which also
includes the City Center POA and North
Washington Street POA. The South Washington
Street POA is 43.3 acres, bordered to the south
and southwest by Fairfax County. Residential
neighborhoods border the area to the east, west
and northwest, and the City Center POA borders
the area to the north along Route 29.

The boundaries of the South Washington Street
POA were initially established in chapter four of the
2005 Comprehensive Plan. It has been changed
from Priority Area 6 in the 2005 Comprehensive
Plan to Priority Area 2 in this update. It is being
produced second due to the P O A dosation along
the Route 29 commercial corridor, proximity to the
City Center POA, and because it serves as a major
gateway to the city. There has also been recent
developer interest in properties along South
Washington Street, and the Intermodal Transit
Plaza project brings a new transit element to the
area. The plan for the South Washington Street
Corridor POA will supplement the previous plan
made for the North Washington Street POA in
framing the City Center POA along Route 29.

South Washington Street Corridor

History

The City of Falls Church in general, and the South
Washington Street Corridor POA in particular,
boast a rich and extensive history. The following
sections provide a very brief outline of the history of
the POA. More information related to the history of
the area is available at the Mary Riley Styles Public
Library. Reservations are required to access the
Local History Room. The library is located at 120
North Virginia Avenue, Falls Church, VA 22046.
The Local History Room can be reached directly by
phone at 703 248 5140 (TTY 711).

Early History

The first settlement in the area was in 1699 with a
home site that is now honored in Big Chimneys
Park, adjacent to the POA. The family that settled
there has remained here with 13 generations
continuing to live in and around the City of Falls
Church. The Rolling Road, which passes through
the POA, was used as a regional route for market
goods including tobacco and brought many
travelers through the area. Wi | | i am
Church was first built of wood in 1733. By 1757,
the church became known as The Falls Church due
to its location on a main road from the Little Falls to
the Potomac River. The church was re-built of brick
in 1769 and still stands at its current location at the
corner of South Washington Street and East Fairfax
Street, adjacent to the POA. The Falls Church
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vestrymen included George Washington, George
Mason, and benefactors included Lord Fairfax. The
church was a central construct of the community
during the colonial and Federal periods. The Falls
Church became the centerpiece of a community
that would develop around it and eventually
become the City of Falls Church.

19" Century

During the Civil War, The Falls Church was actively
used to support the troops on both sides in
response to the nearby battles. The church was at
times used for a field hospital and the church
cemetery includes graves of both Confederate and
Union troops. Shortly after the end of the Civil War
and the 13" Amendment was passed in 1865, the
Tinner brothers began searching for land to buy. In
1867, African Americans John and Charles Tinner
purchased property in Falls Church from the Dulany
family, prominent local landowners. The Lee
brothers, James and Charles, also purchased land
in the area in 1867. That same year, Watkins
Chapel, later known as Galloway United Methodist
Church, was constructed for freed slaves on land
procured by George and Harriet Brice. Charles
Tinner would become an active member of the
Galloway Church congregation after joining in
1871. Black children went to school in the nearby
Second Baptist Church, built on Baptist Hill in
modern-day Fairfax County in 1872. The school
was called AThe Col ored
held in the basement of the church.
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